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Dear Owen: 
 
At your request, Zander Associates has completed an assessment of the revised development 
plans for the Moss Beach Ocean Development located at Vallemar St. and Julianna Ave. in Moss 
Beach, California.  The purpose of our assessment was to evaluate potential project effects on 
coastal prairie grasslands onsite and on the occurrence of coast yellow leptosiphon (Leptosiphon 
croceus) just west of the property line.  This letter provides the results of our assessment. 
 
The following plans and documents were reviewed for this assessment: 

• Civil Engineering Plan Set (Sheets C1.0 through C8.0) dated 4/26/17, prepared by 
Mesiti-Miller Engineering, Inc., dated 4/26/17 

• County Coastside Design Review Submittal dated 4/26/17, prepared by Pearson Design 
Group, Verde Design and Mesiti-Miller Engineering, Inc. 

• Preliminary Storm Drainage Report for Moss Beach Development prepared by Mesiti-
Miller Engineering, Inc., dated April 26, 2017 

• Vallemar Bluffs Conservation Strategy prepared by Jodi McGraw Consulting, dated June 
2017 

• Vallemar Bluffs Conservation Area Adaptive Management and Monitoring Plan 
Annotated Outline and Goals and Objectives prepared by Jodi McGraw Consulting, dated 
August 22, 2016 

 
The Moss Beach Ocean Development is situated on a 2.4 acre property located in Moss Beach, 
California on coastal bluffs overlooking the Pacific Ocean just west of Highway 1.  The site 
comprises seven currently undeveloped lots of record with access provided by Vallemar and 
Juliana Streets along the easterly and southerly property lines respectively.  The site can be 
broadly divided into two vegetation types: remnant coastal prairie grasslands on the west and 
disturbed/ruderal grounds, mostly under a Monterey cypress (Hesperocyparis macrocarpa) 
canopy on the east and without tree cover on the southwest corner.  The promontory overlooking 
the ocean just offsite to the west (on public open space lands) supports a population of coast 
yellow leptosiphon (Leptosiphon croceus), which was recently designated as a candidate for 
listing as endangered by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and  is ranked by the 
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California Native Plant Society (CNPS) as seriously threatened in California (1B.1).  There is no 
coast yellow leptosiphon on the development property.  
 
The revised development plans propose to consolidate the property into four lots and construct 
four single-family homes, one on each lot.  The building envelopes have been sited within the 
disturbed/ruderal grounds onsite and minimize direct removal of the remnant coastal prairie 
grasslands.  Access to all lots is from Vallemar Street and the western portion of each lot will 
remain and/or be restored as coastal prairie grassland.  Sheet L3.3 in the Design Review 
submittal (4/26/17) identifies those areas as existing coastal prairie grassland to remain and be 
protected (14,424 sq. ft.), and onsite coastal prairie restoration (25,113 sq. ft.).  It also identifies 
another 14,868 sq. ft. of the bluff outside but adjacent to the project site, including the existing 
population of coast yellow leptosiphon, to be restored, subject to County approval.  The drainage 
plan calls for utilizing infiltration trenches with overflow spreaders to disperse the runoff over 
wide areas and maintain existing hydrology and soil moisture distribution on the site so as to 
minimize indirect effects on sensitive habitats.  This will also prevent concentrated runoff from 
flowing over the bluffs and reduce potential for soil erosion. 
 
Jodi McGraw Consulting has developed a Conservation Strategy (June 2017) and an annotated 
outline for an Adaptive Management and Monitoring Plan (August 2016) to address the areas of 
coastal prairie grassland on and immediately adjacent to the property that would not be directly 
affected by the construction of homes.  The conservation strategy includes measures to limit 
development impacts on the sites conservation values and calls for permanent protection of the 
coastal prairie habitat remaining on each lot via a conservation easement.  The adaptive 
management and monitoring program would be developed in collaboration with County Parks 
staff to direct long-term management of the onsite conservation easement area and the coastal 
bluff open space lands to the west.  Funding for management would be obtained through home 
owners’ association (HOA) fees, an endowment, or other appropriate funding mechanism 
(McGraw 2017).   
 
The conservation easement area is depicted on Figure 2 in the Conservation Strategy (McGraw 
2017), and on Sheet L3.3 of the Design Review submittal (4/26/17) as all of the property west of 
the Biotic Easement Line, and totals approximately 0.91 acre.  
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
The revised development plans minimize direct effects on the coastal prairie grassland habitat by 
siting development within the disturbed/ruderal areas on the property and designating the 
western edge of each lot for protection/restoration of coastal prairie grassland.  Indirect effects 
on sensitive habitats should be minimized by the following actions: 
 

• Implementing the drainage improvement recommendations provided by Mesiti-Miller 
Engineering, Inc. (2017) to limit impacts to the coastal prairie, erosive bluff edge, and the 
near-shore marine environment.  These recommendations include: utilizing infiltration 
trenches with overflow spreaders on each lot to disperse the runoff over wide areas and 
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maintain existing hydrology and soil moisture on the site, and; using pervious pavers and 
detention areas to control peak runoff. 

• Landscaping with native plants from a palette of species native to coastal San Mateo 
County as indicated on Sheets L3.3 and L3.4 of the Design Review submittal (2017). 

• Implementing the conservation strategy developed by McGraw (2017), which would 
permanently protect the coastal prairie grassland habitat outside of the development 
envelopes via a conservation easement granted in favor of a non-profit conservation 
organization (e.g. land trust) or government agency. The easement will preclude 
development or other activities that degrade the biotic, scenic, recreational values of the 
site. It will also provide the grantee affirmative rights to manage these values.   

• Formalizing the boundaries of the conservation easement area, identifying the grantee, 
and establishing restricted and allowable uses.  According to the revised development 
plan, the conservation easement area will be approximately 0.91 acre in extent. 

• Developing an Adaptive Management and Monitoring Plan following the annotated 
outline prepared by McGraw (2016).  To address management of the larger coastal prairie 
community on the site, the AMMP will be developed in coordination with San Mateo 
County Parks Department, which manages habitat within the adjacent Fitzgerald Marine 
Reserve. The management plan will feature elements for each property, to address their 
unique circumstances, as well as joint elements designed to promote effective, 
coordinated management. 

• Establishing the funding mechanism for long-term management and monitoring of the 
conservation easement area.  

• Adopting use restrictions for the lots to protect the sensitive habitats, including 
restrictions on the use of pesticides and fertilizers and pet access. 

 
We believe that incorporation of the measures described above will allow preservation and 
restoration of the sensitive coastal prairie grasslands on the site in perpetuity and provide an 
opportunity for sustaining and enhancing the population of coast yellow leptosiphon just west of 
the property line.  
 
Should you have any questions regarding our review and assessment, please don’t hesitate to call 
me. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Leslie Zander 
Principal Biologist 
 
 
cc: Jodi McGraw 
















